FILED

SID J. WHITE

MAY 3 1995

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT  
By [Signature]  
Chief Deputy Clerk

NATHANIEL WHITE,

Petitioner,

versus

CASE NO. 85,603

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT  
IN AND FOR VOLUSIA COUNTY  
AND THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON, PUBLIC DEFENDER  
SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

BRYNN NEWTON  
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER  
Florida Bar Number 175150  
112-A Orange Avenue  
Daytona Beach, Florida 32114-4310  
904-252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner was convicted in 1990 in the Circuit Court of Volusia County, Florida, of possession of a firearm by a convicted felon; burglary of a dwelling; robbery; two counts of aggravated assault; and eluding a law enforcement officer, and was sentenced as an habitual violent felony offender to concurrent terms totalling thirty years in prison. (R 86-92) His convictions and sentences were affirmed, per curiam, by the Fifth District Court of Appeal on February 26, 1991. White v. State, 576 So. 2d 307 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991). On May 6, 1994, the trial court denied his motion to correct an illegal sentence. (R 20-23, 35-40) On February 24, 1995, the trial court's order was affirmed by the District Court and on March 24, 1995, Petitioner's motion for rehearing was denied. White v. State, 20 Fla. L. Weekly D482 (Fla. 5th DCA February 24, 1995).

Notice of seeking this Honorable Court's review was filed on April 21, 1995.

## SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The District Court's decision in this case directly and expressly conflicts with decisions of this Honorable Court and of other District Courts of Appeal in two respects:

(1) The District Court's refusal to review a trial court's denial of a motion to correct an illegal habitual violent felony offender sentence because the sentence has already been affirmed on direct appeal conflicts with Rule 3.800(a) and other Florida Courts' rulings that an illegal sentence may be corrected at any time.

(2) The District Court's affirmance of an habitual violent felony offender sentence on the basis of a prior conviction for D.U.I. manslaughter directly and expressly conflicts with the First District Court of Appeal's decision that D.U.I. manslaughter is not an offense contemplated by the habitual felony offender statute and does not qualify a defendant for sentencing thereunder because D.U.I. manslaughter is not a "consciously violent" type of crime.

ISSUE

THE DISTRICT COURT'S DECISION DIRECTLY AND EXPRESSLY CONFLICTS WITH WILLIAMS v. STATE, 591 So. 2d 948 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991); BEDFORD v. STATE, 633 So. 2d 13 (Fla. 1994); AND WATKINS v. STATE, 622 So. 2d 1148 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993).

In this case, the District Court has affirmed the Volusia County trial court's denial of Petitioner's motion to correct an illegal sentence as an habitual violent felony offender. White v. State, 20 Fla. L. Weekly D482 (Fla. 5th DCA February 24, 1995). Petitioner had argued in his motion to correct his sentence and on an earlier direct appeal that his conviction which purportedly qualified him as an habitual violent felony offender, a 1977 adjudication for manslaughter, was not a "violent" felony but was rather the result of driving under the influence of alcohol. Id. (R 66) In its decision, the District Court wrote:

In [Petitioner's] prior direct appeal, based on this court's records, White in fact challenged his violent habitual felony offender sentence on the very grounds he now seeks to raise in the context of this appeal from a rule 3.800 motion. Under the law of the case doctrine (a species of res judicata), White cannot raise this issue again. Sanders v. State, 621 So. 2d 723 (Fla. 5th DCA), rev. denied, 629 So. 2d 135 (Fla. 1993). A per curiam decision even without opinion establishes the law of the case on the same issues and facts which were raised or which could have been raised. Gaskins v. State, 502 So. 2d 1344, 1346 (Fla. 2d DCA 1987); State v. Stabile, 443 So. 2d

398 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984).

If the necessary predicate convictions are absent, an habitual felony offender sentence is illegal, and an illegal sentence may be corrected at any time. Williams v. State, 591 So. 2d 948 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991), quashed on other grounds, 599 So. 2d 998 (Fla. 1992); Rule 3.800(a), Fla. R. Crim. P. In Bedford v. State, 633 So. 2d 13 (Fla. 1994), the Fourth District Court of Appeal had denied relief from an illegal sentence for kidnapping "on the rationale that [the Supreme Court] had previously affirmed that sentence and because the law of the case precluded review." Id., 633 So. 2d at 14. This Honorable Court in Bedford agreed with District Court Judge Anstead's dissent and held that an illegal sentence may be corrected even after it has been erroneously affirmed. The illegality of the kidnapping sentence had not been raised on direct appeal in Bedford; but by analogy, in Preston v. State, 444 So. 2d 939 (Fla. 1984), the Supreme Court reconsidered its ruling on a suppression issue because, it said, an appellate court has the power to reconsider and correct erroneous rulings, notwithstanding that such rulings have become the "law of the case," in exceptional circumstances where reliance on a previous decision would result in manifest injustice.

It should be noted that in Sanders v. State, 621 So. 2d 723 (Fla. 5th DCA 1993), cited by the District Court in this decision for the proposition that Petitioner may not seek relief herein because his sentence had been previously affirmed, the appellant

Sanders' claims had been rejected because the errors complained of did not constitute an illegal sentence. Additionally, in Gaskins v. State, 502 So. 2d 1344 (Fla. 2d DCA 1987), that portion of Gaskins' sentence which was deemed to be illegal was corrected by the District Court, but the sentencing error which may have merely violated the sentencing guidelines and had been raised already on appeal was rejected.

The District Court's decision, therefore, directly and expressly conflicts with decisions of this Honorable Court and of other Florida Courts which have held that an illegal sentence may be corrected at any time.

The District Court's decision furthermore directly and expressly conflicts with Watkins v. State, 622 So. 2d 1148 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993), wherein the First District Court of Appeal held that the defendant could not be sentenced as an habitual violent felony offender on the basis of his having previously been convicted of DUI manslaughter. The Fifth District Court of Appeal wrote herein:

. . . This court has upheld sentencing a defendant as a violent felony offender based on a previous felony conviction approximately the equivalent of DUI/manslaughter. Canales v. State, 571 So. 2d 87 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990).

White v. State, 20 Fla. L. Weekly D482 (Fla. 5th DCA February 24, 1995). In Canales v. State, 571 So. 2d 87 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990), the issue was whether the prior violent felony qualifying a defendant for habitual violent felony offender sentencing must