FILED

SID J. WHITE

MAY 22 1995

A.1.1-02-17

CLERK, SUBBAND COURT

By

Chief Deputy Clerk

NATHANIEL WHITE,

Petitioner,

v.

Case No. 85,603

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

On Review from the District Court of Appeal of the State of Florida Fifth District

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

REBECCA ROARK WALL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #618586 444 Seabreeze Blvd. 5th Floor Daytona Beach, FL 32118 (904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This court should not exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in this case. There is no express or direct conflict contained in the District Court's opinion. There is nothing more than Petitioner's disappointment with the outcome of the DCA's decision. That is not enough to trigger this court's discretionary jurisdiction. Petitioner has failed to identify any grounds to invoke this court's jurisdiction. Therefore, this court should deny review.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD NOT EXERCISE DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION IN THIS CASE BECAUSE NO GROUNDS EXIST FOR SUCH JURISDICTION.

This court's jurisdiction is defined by Article V of the Florida Constitution (1991). Art. V, §3(b) expressly sets out this court's jurisdiction, describing every situation in which this court has or may take jurisdiction. Art. V, §3(b), Fla. Const. (1991). That jurisdiction is also set out in Rule 9.030(a) of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.

While Petitioner has attempted to invoke this court's jurisdiction based on "express and direct conflict", this case fails to qualify on that ground. In 1980, Article V was amended to limit the Florida Supreme Court's discretionary jurisdiction in cases involving conflict. Rule 9.030 was likewise revised to incorporate the constitutional amendment. The Committee Notes to Rule 9.030, in discussing the 1980 amendment make it clear that the amendment was intended to reduce the "burgeoning caseload" that the Court handles.

The Committee Note, referring to conflict cases, states that "[t]hese cases comprised the overwhelming bulk of the court's caseload and gave rise to an intricate body of case law interpreting the requirements for discretionary conflict review." For this reason, Article V and Rule 9.030 were amended to require a showing of "express and direct" conflict in order to invoke jurisdiction.

The written opinion of the Fifth District Court of Appeal filed July 1, 1994 shows no express and direct conflict with any other court. (See attached opinion). Clearly, nowhere in the opinion does the District Court express that there is conflict between its decision and any other court. Nor does the opinion cite to any case which is in direct conflict with either the DCA's ruling or the issue presented.

This court, long ago, very clearly delineated the limitation on its jurisdiction which was narrowed by the 1980 constitutional amendment. In *Jenkins v. State*, 385 So. 2d 1356 (Fla. 1980), this court stated

The pertinent language of section 3(b)(3), as amended April 1, 1980, leaves no room for doubt. Court may only review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or the Supreme Court on the same question of law. dictionary definitions of the term "express" include: "to represent in words"; "to give expression to." "Expressly" is defined: express manner." Webster's Third New International Dictionary, (1961) ed. unabr.).

(emphasis in original) Id. at 1359. This court further added that

As stated by Justice Adkins in Gibson v. Maloney, 231 So. 2d 823 at 824 (Fla. 1970), "[i]t is conflict of decisions, not conflict of opinions or reasons that supplies jurisdiction for review by certiorari."

(emphasis in original) Id.

It is evident on the face of the published opinion that there

is no "express" conflict. Similarly, there is no "direct" conflict created by the court's use of the cases to explicate its reasoning. Both the constitution and Rule 9.030 requires that **both** express and direct conflict be obvious. Since neither is present here, this court should decline to take jurisdiction.

In short, there simply is no ground for this court to take discretionary jurisdiction in the instant case. The mere fact that Petitioner is not happy with the outcome of the district court's decision is not a valid ground for this court to revisit the very same issue and facts reviewed by the district court. Because Petitioner has failed to state any grounds which would invoke this court's jurisdiction, this court should deny review of this matter.

CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented herein, Respondent respectfully prays this honorable court deny jurisdiction in this matter.